

PERCRI782



# EFFECT OF REDUCTION TEMPERATURE, CARBIDING, AND SULFUR POISONING ON THE METHANATION ACTIVITY OF RANEY NICKEL

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY, PITTSBURGH, PA. PITTSBURGH ENERGY RESEARCH CENTER

APR 1978



National Technical Information Service

# **One Source. One Search. One Solution.**

NTZS



# **Providing Permanent, Easy Access to U.S. Government Information**

National Technical Information Service is the nation's largest repository and disseminator of governmentinitiated scientific, technical, engineering, and related business information. The NTIS collection includes almost 3,000,000 information products in a variety of formats: electronic download, online access, CD-ROM, magnetic tape, diskette, multimedia, microfiche and paper.





### Search the NTIS Database from 1990 forward

NTIS has upgraded its bibliographic database system and has made all entries since 1990 searchable on **www.ntis.gov.** You now have access to information on more than 600,000 government research information products from this web site.

### Link to Full Text Documents at Government Web Sites

Because many Government agencies have their most recent reports available on their own web site, we have added links directly to these reports. When available, you will see a link on the right side of the bibliographic screen.

### **Download Publications (1997 - Present)**

NTIS can now provides the full text of reports as downloadable PDF files. This means that when an agency stops maintaining a report on the web, NTIS will offer a downloadable version. There is a nominal fee for each download for most publications.

For more information visit our website:

# www.ntis.gov



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE Technology Administration National Technical Information Service Springfield, VA 22161

No. 160



PERC/RI-78/2 Distribution Category UC-90c

EFFECT OF REDUCTION TEMPERATURE, CARBIDING AND SULFUR POISONING ON THE METHANATION ACTIVITY OF RANEY NICKEL

By M. J. Baird D. T. Weinberger G. Delzer A. P. Hobbs P. Pantages F. W. Steffgen

April 1978 Issuance Date



Pittsburgh Energy Research Center Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

D'STRIBUTION OF THIS DECUMENT IS UNLIMITED

TECHNICAL INFORMATION CENTER UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Proceedings of property as an account or work synamically real-Varid Socie Construction Society and Land States not the United States Department of Land States not the United States Department of contractions, who offections, or their employees not any of their contractions, schootfections, or their employees not any of their contractions, exploring states, or their employees not account in the school of the scates completions of the context of the scates completions of the scates of the school of the scates completions of the school of the scates completions of the process disclose on information, appearance product or process disclose on an optimise in the we would not infinge protectly evend rights.

### CONTENTS

.

	Page
Abstract Introduction	1 1
Experimental	
Catalyst preparation	2
Catalyst deactivation	3
Sintering	3
Carbiding	3
Sulfiding	3
Catalyst testing	6
Surface area measurements	8
ESCA measurements	8
Results	9
Standards: nondeactivated sample	9
Sintered samples	9
Carbided samples	. 11
Sulfided samples	12
Comparison of deactivated samples	13
ESCA measurements	16
Conclusions	18
Potemonana	10
	1.7
Abbena TX	41

### ILI USTRATIONS

1.	Carbiding apparatus	4
2.	Sulfiding apparatus	5
3.	Pulse microreactor system	7
4.	CO conversion on Raney nickel as a function of pulse	
	number for various weights of catalyst	10
5.	Effect of sulfiding on CO conversion at 320° C	14

### TABLES

1. 2.	Effect of prereducing temperature on CO conversion Effect of carbon laydown on CO conversion and product	11
	selectivity of Raney nickel	12
3.	CO conversion and surface area of standard and deactive	ated
	Raney nickel	13
4.	Activity of deactivated samples and remaining nickel	
	surface area	15
5.	Survey scans of Raney nickel alloy and a reduced	
	nonpyrophoric sample	17

### TABLES

A-1. CO conversion and selectivity of nondeactivated Raney nickel at 320° C
A-2. CO conversion and selectivity data of carbided Raney nickel
A-3. CO conversion and selectivity of sulfided Raney nickel

A-4. ESCA measurements (20 eV scans) over Raney nickel alloy, leached, nondeactivated, reduced Raney nickel, carbided and sulfided Raney nickel 26

Page

EFFECT OF REDUCTION TEMPERATURE, CARBIDING AND SULFUR POISONING ON THE METHANATION ACTIVITY OF RANEY NICKEL

By

Michael J. Baird,<sup>1</sup> D. Todd Weinberger<sup>2</sup>, Gary Delzer<sup>3</sup>, 5 Anson P. Hobbs, Peter Pantages, and Fred W. Steffgen

### ABSTRACT

The effects of reduction temperature, carbiding and sulfur poisoning on the methanation activity of Raney nickel were investigated. A combination of techniques such as BET surface area,  $H_2$  and CO chemisorption, ESCA measurements and activity tests were used to characterize the catalyst before and after deactivation.

The following reductions in catalytic activity, as determined in a pulse microreactor at 320° C, were observed for the deactivated samples. Initial heating of the catalyst for 3-1/2 hours at 500° C and 1 hour at 600° C in 8 percent H<sub>2</sub> in helium lowered CO conversion by 12 and 24 percent, respectively, when compared to a sample that was reduced for 1 hour at 400° C. The methanation activity of Raney nickel at 320° C was drastically lowered following a precarbiding treatment at 263° C. Surface poisoning with H<sub>2</sub>S caused a greater reduction in methanation activity than that attributed to the corresponding decrease in free nickel surface area.

A surface carbide and sulfur species were observed by ESCA measurements on samples that were deactivated by carbiding and  $H_{\gamma}S$  poisoning.

### INTRODUCTION

In the Department of Energy's SYNTHANE process, that is currently under development for the production of synthetic natural gas (SNG) from coal, a Raney nickel catalyst is being investigated for use in the methanator to convert CO and H<sub>2</sub> to CH<sub>4</sub>. In order for the process to become technically and economically feasible, the catalyst should have a life expectancy of at least one year without significant loss of catalyst activity. To date, pilot plant investigations on three types of methanators; the tube wall reactor  $(3,4,6,7)^{\circ}$ , the hot gas recycle system, (5,8,9), and the hybrid reactor (14) have shown that catalyst deactivation is a serious problem.

- <sup>3</sup>Former NRC post-doctoral fellow.
- <sup>4</sup>Physical science technician
- <sup>5</sup>Research Supervisor

<sup>6</sup>Numbers in parentheses refer to items in the list of references at the end of this report.

l Research chemist.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Former physical scientist

There are several possible causes of catalyst deactivation. Previous work (10) has indicated that loss of catalytic activity in pilot plant reactors is associated with loss of nickel surface area. This suggests that metal sintering has occurred due to localized hot spots on the catalyst surface resulting from the exothermic methanation reaction. Carbon laydown can also affect the life of Raney nickel by poisoning active sites or by plugging pores in the catalyst. Although under methanation conditions carbon deposition is thought to be avoided by keeping the  $H_2/CO$  ratio greater than three (10), carbon has been detected at the inlet end of the catalyst bed following termination of pilot plant runs (13). X-ray diffraction analysis of the spent catalyst suggests that carbon can occur in the forms of Ni<sub>2</sub>C or a nickel carbide stabilized by iron. Sulfur compounds are known to poison nickel (11, 12). In the SYNTHANE process less than 0.1 PPM of  $H_2S$  will be allowed in the feed gas to the methanator.

In order to identify factors related to catalyst deactivation, a combination of techniques, such as EET surface area, H<sub>2</sub> and CO adsorption, electron spectroscopy for chemical analysis (ESCA) and activity tests were used to characterize Raney nickel before and after deactivation. The effects that high temperatures, sulfur poisoning and carbiding have on the methanation activity of Raney nickel will be discussed.

### EXPERIMENTAL

### Catalyst Preparation

Approximately 229 grams of a commercial Raney nickel alloy' obtained from W. R. Grace was added to a solution of 50 percent NaOH. By controlling the rate of alloy addition and temperature of the water bath surrounding the reaction flask, the temperature of leaching was maintained at 70° C. Activation was continued until the evolution of H<sub>2</sub> could no longer be detected by a wet test meter. Calculations based on the volume of H<sub>2</sub> measured indicated 95 percent of the aluminum was leached from the alloy. The leached sample was thoroughly washed with deionized water, dilute (0.5 percent) acetic acid, and deionized water, respectively, and the pH of the final solution was 7.5. To stabilize the catalyst by mild oxidation, the aqueous slurry (900 mL) was treated with 16 mL of 30% H<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub>, then separated from the water and dried under vacuum at 25° C. The stabilized nickel catalyst was divided into 10 approximately equal parts and stored in glass vials. Thermogravimetric analysis (TGA) of the stabilized sample resulted in a 14 percent weight loss after reduction in H<sub>2</sub> for approximately 8 hours at 400° C. Samples of the stabilized catalyst were used for various experiments as described below.

<sup>7</sup>The Raney alloy was identified as Batch 18 and had the following elemental composition: 61.1 percent A1, 38.3 percent Ni, 0.2 percent C, 0.1 percent Fe, 0.2 percent Na, and 0.1 percent S.

<sup>8</sup>Reference to specific brands is made for identification only and does not imply endorsement by the U.S. Department of Energy.

### Catalyst Deactivation

<u>Sintering</u>. Raney nickel was sintered by heating the catalyst in the carrier gas (8 percent  $H_2$  + 92 percent He) of the pulse microreactor to temperatures of 500° and 600° C. Following the sintering treatment, CO conversion was determined at 320° C. Samples used for nickel surface area measurements were sintered in the TGA apparatus.

١

Carbiding. Nickel carbide, identified by X-ray diffraction, can be prepared by passing CO over Raney nickel at temperatures less than 300° C at 1 atm. Bahr and Bahr (1) showed that below 270° C, CO reacted with nickel to form Ni<sub>3</sub>C. The decomposition of CO continued until the Ni was completely transformed into Ni<sub>3</sub>C.

Approximately 6.6 grams of the stabilized sample was reduced in  $H_2$  at 400° C for 3-1/2 hours, then carbided by passing CO through the catalyst bed for 2 hours at 263° C. The sample was cooled to room temperature in N<sub>2</sub>. The percent of nickel carbide, as determined by the amount of CO<sub>2</sub> absorbed in a soda lime trap and by the increase in catalyst weight, was 59 and 73 percent, respectively. An average value of 66 percent was used for the extent of nickel atoms carbided. The sample was stored in a glass vial under 1 atm. of N<sub>2</sub>. A sketch of the apparatus used for carbiding is shown in Figure 1<sup>2</sup>.

Sulfiding. Sulfiding was accomplished by passing  $H_2S$  through a bed of reduced Raney nickel at 400° C. As shown in Figure 2,  $H_2S$  was introduced into the  $H_2$  stream by diffusion through a permeation tube containing liquid  $H_2S$ . The permeation rate for the 10 cm  $H_2S$  tube was 246 ng/min or 7.23 x 10<sup>-9</sup> moles/min at 1° C. This value was determined by two methods. The first involved taking the following calibration data, supplied by the manufacturer, and plotting the logarithm of the permeation rate against temperature.

Temperature, °C	Permeation Rate, ng H,S cm min
20	165
30	410
40	1000

Extrapolation to 1° C gave 25 ng  $H_2 S \text{ cm}^{-1} \text{min}^{-1}$ . In the second method the permeation rate at 1° C was calibrated by passing  $N_2$  at flows of 150 to 200 cm/min over the tube and collecting the  $H_2S^2$  in a lead acetate solution. The concentration of absorbed  $H_2S$  was determined by analytical techniques. From nine runs over a period of from 30 to 70 minutes, the average rate for the 10 cm tube was 246 ng/min. Therefore, passing  $H_2$  at a flow rate of 180 cc/min over the permeation



2/2/77 L-15217

Figure 1-Carbiding opparatus

4





Figure 2-Sulfiding apparatus

L-15218

5

tube at 1° C resulted in a feed containing 0.9 PPM  $H_2S$  in  $H_2$  by volume. From the time internal of  $H_2S/H_2$  flow through the samples, the amounts of  $H_2S$  that adsorbed on Ni sites were caluclated. Since a negligible amount of  $H_2S$  was absorbed in a lead acetate solution downstream from the catalyst, it was concluded that the sample adsorbed the  $H_2S$  nearly quantitatively. Assuming one molecule of  $H_2S$  adsorbed on three nickel sites, a monolayer coverage of sulfur, based on  $H_2$ chemisorption measurements, was calculated as follows:

$$\frac{10.6 \text{ m}^{2} \text{ Ni}}{\text{g catalyst}} \times \frac{1 \text{ cm}^{3} \text{ H}_{2}}{3.64 \text{ m}^{2} \text{Ni}} \times \frac{1 \text{ mole } \text{H}_{2}}{22,400 \text{ cm}^{3} \text{H}_{2}} \times \frac{2 \text{ moles } \text{Ni}_{(S)}}{1 \text{ mole } \text{H}_{2}} \qquad (1)$$

$$= \frac{2.6 \times 10^{-4} \text{ moles } \text{Ni}_{(S)}}{\text{g catalyst}}$$

Therefore, one monolayer coverage corresponds to 0.87 X  $10^{-4}$  moles of H<sub>2</sub>S per gram of catalyst. Nickel surface coverages of 15 and 51 percent were obtained by passing the H<sub>2</sub>S/H<sub>2</sub> feed through 5.3 and 4.8 grams of reduced nickel for 157 and 485 hours, respectively.

### Catalyst Testing

A pulse microreactor-gas chromatograph (GC) system, shown in Figure 3, was used to measure the initial activity and product selectivity of the Raney nickel catalysts. Catalyst weights ranging from 2.4 to 22.2 mg were placed in the center of a 6 mm O.D. by 4 mm I.D. pyrex glass reactor of approximately 31 cm length. For the carbided and sulfided catalysts, samples were transferred to the reactor via a glove bag filled with  $N_2$ . The reactor was then connected to the flow system and purged with carrier gas. Care was taken to prevent air from contacting the sample as the reactor was being connected. A horizontal tube furnace 20 cm in length was used to heat the glass reactor tube, and a chromel vs. alumel thermocouple inserted inside the reactor tube immediately before the catalyst bed measured the temperature. The carrier gas was passed through the reactor at 60 cm<sup>2</sup>/min and 20 psig. Prior to methanation tests, the nickel catalyst was reduced in carrier gas for one hour at 400° C. Reactant gas consisting of 76.00 percent H2, 23.76 percent CO, 0.08 percent CO<sub>2</sub>, 0.10 percent N<sub>2</sub> and 0.06 percent CH<sub>4</sub> was introduced into the carrier gas stream via  $\tilde{a}$  1.00 cm sampling valve.

A Bendix Model 2230-2 gas chromatograph with a thermal conductivity detector was used with a Hewlett Packard 7123A recorder to analyze the gaseous products. A 3 foot column packed with 60/80 mesh 5A molecular sieve was used to separate  $CH_4$  and CO, while a 5 foot column packed



•



2/2/77 L-15220

7

with 80/100 mesh porapak-S was used to separate  $CO_2$ ,  $C_2H_6$  and  $H_2O$ . Both columns were made from 1/4-inch O.D. stainless steel tubing and were held at  $60^\circ$  C. A gas switching value on the GC was used to prevent water and CO, from contacting the molecular sieve column. In most cases initial activity and product selectivity were determined at  $320^\circ$  C, but for some of the deactivated samples, temperatures ranging from 200° to 400° C were employed. The only hydrocarbon products detected were methane and ethane. Methanation activity was defined as the ratio of weight of standard catalyst to the weight of deactivated catalyst required to obtain a given CO conversion. CO conversion was defined by:

Percent Conversion = 
$$\frac{A}{A+B}$$
 x 100 (2)

where A is the net moles of CO converted to CH<sub>4</sub>, C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>6</sub> and CO<sub>2</sub> and B represents the moles of CO leaving the reactor. The selectivity to product X was defined by the following equation:

Percent Selectivity to  $X = \frac{\text{moles of CO consumed to form X}}{A} X 100$  (3)

where X is CH<sub>4</sub>, C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>6</sub> or CO<sub>2</sub>.

### Surface Area Measurements

A volumetric BET adsorption apparatus was used to determine total surface areas by N<sub>2</sub> adsorption at -196° C and nickel surface areas by H<sub>2</sub> chemisorption at 250° C. In each case the sample was first reduced in hydrogen to 400° C. Nickel surface areas of the sintered catalysts were also determined in the TGA by CO chemisorption at 110° C. The latter method was used for small sample sizes, and results were comparable with the H<sub>2</sub> chemisorption method.

### ESCA Measurements

ESCA spectroscopy is a surface analysis technique which involves irradiating a sample with X-rays and measuring the kinetic energy of the ejected core electrons. Binding energies of the ejected electrons are then obtained by subtracting the energy of the incident X-ray from the measured kinetic energies. Since binding energy is a function of chemical environment, identification of the element to which the electron was associated can be made. Shifts in the binding energy of several electron volts are common for different oxidation states.

In this investigation a Hewlett-Packard 5950A ESCA spectrometer was used to examine the surface of Raney nickel catalysts. An aluminum anode was used for the source of X-rays, and an electron flood gun was used to control charging effects. Spectra were recorded with the flood gun set to 0.4 mA and the initial or surface electron kinetic energy set to zero volts. Except for survey scans of 1,000 eV, a 20 eV rauge was recorded.

Two techniques were used for preparation of samples for analysis. In one, the reduced nickel was pressed into a strip of indium foil, and in the other, a press was utilized to form small pills. The samples were prepared in a glove bag and then transferred to the sample probe of the spectrometer. The following were examined for Ni, Al, C, Fe, Na and S:

- (1) Raney nickel alloy prior to leaching
- (2) reduced nonpyrophoric sample
- (3) carbided sample
- (4) sample poisoned with H<sub>2</sub>S

### RESULTS

### Standards; Nondeactivated Sample

Carbon monoxide conversion and selectivity data for the nondeactivated samples are listed in Table A-1 in the Appendix. As illustrated in Figure 4, a slight decrease in CO conversion was observed for successive pulses of synthesis gas over the lower weight sample, but for samples of higher weight, the decrease in activity was not noticeable after the first few pulses of  $3H_2/CO$ . Heating the catalyst in carrier gas at  $320^{\circ}$  C overnight did not affect the CO conversion or product selectivity. With increased sample weight CO conversion increased, but no significant change was detected in product selectivity. Total BET (N<sub>2</sub> adsorption at -196° C) and Ni surface areas (H<sub>2</sub> adsorption at 250° C) of the reduced catalyst were 42.0 and 10.6 m<sup>2</sup>/g, respectively.

### Sintered Samples

To study sintering, CO conversion was measured at  $320^{\circ}$  C before and after heating the stabilized Raney nickel catalyst. The first three pulses listed in Table 1 give CO conversion following the standard reduction treatment at 400° C. Heating the sample for 2-1/2 hours at 500° C in the H<sub>2</sub>-He mixture resulted in a loss in catalytic activity. A second reduction treatment for one hour at 500° C had no additional effect, but further deactivation did occur after heating to 600° C for one hour. Heating the sample to 500° and 600° C did not significantly affect the product selectivity. Nickel surface area, as determined by CO adsorption at 110° C, dropped from 15 m<sup>2</sup>/g for a sample heated at 400° C to 6 m<sup>2</sup>/g as a result of the combination of heating to 500° and 600° C in carrier gas.



2/2/77 L-15221

10

Pulse No.	Treatment in 8 pct H <sub>2</sub> + He	CO conversion at 320° C, pct	Sele CH4	CC2	C2 <sup>H</sup> 6	Nickel surface area, m <sup>2</sup> /g
	1 hr at 400° C					<sup>2</sup> 15
1		95	91.2	8.8	0.1	
2		96	90.6	9.4	0.1	
3		93	89.6	10.3	0.1	
	2-1/2 hr at 500° C					
4		86	89.9	10.0	0.2	
5		83	86.3	13.4	0.2	
	1 hr at 500° C					
6		83	90.4	9.2	0.4	
	l hr at 600° C			-		6
7		71	91.8	7.6	0.5	•

Table 1. - Effect of prereducing temperature on CO conversion

<sup>1</sup>Sample weight was 11.5 mg and the carrier gas flow rate was 60 cm<sup>3</sup>/min. Determined with CO, assuming linear adsorption. For a similarly treated sample,  $H_2$  chemisorption resulted in a nickel surface area of 10.6 m/g.

### Carbided Samples

The results from pulse microreactor testing of the carbided samples are given in Table A-2 of the Appendix. To prevent reduction of the sample, the carrier gas was changed to helium. Low but reproducible CO conversions were obtained at 300° C. Methane selectivity was low (30-65%) at 300° C, and the selectivity to CO<sub>2</sub> (30-66%) was much higher than with uncarbided Raney nickel catalyst. Doubling the sample weight resulted in only a slight increase in CO conversion. Following initial runs at 300° C, the temperature was varied from 200° to 400° C. Selectivity to products was erratic with respect to time and temperature. Temperatures below 300° C generally produced high CO<sub>2</sub> selectivity which is in keeping with conditions needed to react CO with metallic nickel to produce CO<sub>2</sub> and Ni<sub>3</sub>C. Above 300° C, Ni<sub>3</sub>C becomes unstable and decomposes to free nickel and carbon. The combination of these two reactions is the Boudouard reaction, the conversion of CO to CO<sub>2</sub> and carbon.

Table 2 compares CO conversion and product selectivity of a noncarbided to a carbided sample. Neglecting the possible GC detector response variation resulting from using 100 percent He as carrier in B-96 and 8 percent H, in helium in B-120, a loss in CO conversion of 39 percent resulted from the carbiding treatment. One would think that carbiding 66 percent of the total nickel would result in almost complete coverage

Sample	Carbided, e pct.	Weight, mg	Pulse No.	CO Conversion at 320° C, pct	Se: CH <sub>4</sub>	Lectivi CO <sub>2</sub>	C2 <sup>H</sup> 6	
B-120	0	12.9 <sup>1</sup>	13	96	87.5	11.7	0.8	
B-96	66	14.5	13	57	62.4	37.5	0.1	

Table 2.	 Effect o	of	carbon	laydo	wn	on	CO	conversio	<u>n and</u>
	product	se	lectiv	ity of	Re	iney	/ nj	ickel	

<sup>1</sup>Since sample B-96 was not reduced prior to the methanation reaction, 12.9 mg is the weight before H<sub>2</sub> reduction.

of the nickel surface sites and that a greater reduction in CO conversion would have been observed. The decrease in nickel surface area as a result of carbiding was not known.

Past work at the Pittsburgh Energy Research Center has shown that deactivated Raney nickel catalysts from pilot plant runs when tested in a TGA gain weight during the methanation reaction. X-ray diffraction of the deactivated comples indicated a surface carbide to be present. On a non-deactivated or standard sample, no weight gain was detected when 3H, + CO was passed over the catalyst at 380° C. This work suggests that carbon deposition occurs on deactivated pilot plant samples under methanation conditions. Therefore, it is believed that the high selectivity to CO, observed on the carbided samples in this investigation is the result of an enhancement in the Boudouard reaction. Wentrcek, et al, (16) using Auger spectroscopy observed a surface carbide on Ni/A1203 following exposure of the catalyst to pulses of CO at temperatures <sup>3</sup> greater than 177° C. The resulting Ni-C species was very reactive to H<sub>2</sub> with quantitative conversion to methane at 277° C. At 400° C, the surface carbide was converted to graphitic carbon which had a very low reactivity towards H.,. In an earlier investigation Bahr and Bahr (1) showed that at temperatures between 270° and 380°C CO reacts with nickel to form Ni<sub>3</sub>C and carbon. It is therefore postulated that in this investigation product  $CH_4$  resulted from the reaction of  $H_2$  from the pulse and surfact Ni<sub>3</sub>C and  $CO_2$  form CO decomposition.

### Sulfided Samples

Table A-3 in the Appendix lists the data for samples deactivated by sulfiding with H<sub>2</sub>S. Very little, if any, loss in CO conversion with pulse number occurred for the various weights of samples tested. Overnight contact in carrier gas at various temperatures or contact with synthesis gas at methanation temperatures did not affect the methanation activity or product selectivity. CO conversion as a function of sample weight for the sulfided samples are compared to the nonsulfided (or standard) sample in Figure 5. For 8 mg samples, a decrease in CO conversion of approximately 20 and 52 percent resulted from sulfiding Raney nickel to nickel surface coverages of 15 and 51 percent, respectively.

Nickel surface areas for the 15 and 51 percent sulfided samples, as determined by H<sub>2</sub> chemisorption at 250° C, were 8.9 and 4.8  $m^2/g$ , respectively. Using 10.6 m<sup>2</sup>/g<sup>2</sup> as the surface area for the nonsulfided sample, the corresponding percent reductions in nickel surface areas for the two sulfided samples were 16 and 55, respectively.

### Comparison of Deactivated Samples

Carbon monoxide conversions and nickel surface or nickel bulk areas of approximately equal weights of standard and deactivated Raney nickel catalysts are compared in Table 3.

### Table 3. - CO conversion and surface area of standard and deactivated Raney nickel

Sample	Wt, mg	Temp. in carrier gas, °C	CO conversion at 320° C, pct	Nickel surface <sup>1</sup> area, m <sup>2</sup> /g
Standard Deactivated	11.5 11.5	400 600	93 71	15 6
B. Carbided	Sample			
Sample Wt,	mg	Extent of carbiding, pct	CO conversi at 320°C,	on pct
Standard Deactivated	12.9 14.5	0 66	96 57	
C. Sulfided	Sample <u>Wt, mg</u>	Sulfur surface coverage, pct <u>Ni<sub>3</sub>S</u>	CO conversion at 320° C, pct	Nickel surface <sup>2</sup> area, m <sup>2</sup> /g
Standard	8	0	78	10.6
Deactivated	8	15	63 39	8.9
Standard Deactivated Deactivated	12 12 12	0 15 51	96 80 52	10.6 8.9 4.9

Sintered Sample Α.

<sup>1</sup>Nickel surface area determined by CO adsorption at 110° C. <sup>2</sup>Nickel surface area determined by  $H_2$  adsorption at 250° C.





2/2/77 L-15222

14

In order to compare the performance of a deactivated sample to that of the nondeactivated standard, the activity of the deactivated catalyst is related to the remaining nickel surface area in Table 4. Activity is defined as the ratio of the weight of standard to the weight of deactivated catalyst that would be required to give the same CO conversion as the standard. Figure 5 was used to determine the weight of standard (curve A) that would be needed to give the same CO conversion as the sintered and carbided samples listed in Table 3. For the two sulfided samples, Figure 5 was used to determine the activity for CO conversions of 60 and 80 percent.

### Table 4. - <u>Activity of deactivated samples and</u> remaining nickel surface area

A. Sintered sample

Sample weight 71% CO convers Deactivated	for sion, mg Standard	<u>Activity</u>	Decre as a 600°	ase in nic result of C, pct	kel sur sinteri	face area ng at		
11.5	6.8	0.60		60				
B. Carbided	sample							
Sample weight forBulk nickel not57% CO conversion, mgActivityDeactivatedStandard								
14.5	4.6	0.32		33				
C. Sulfided	sample							
(a) Sample <u>60%</u> CO	weight for conversion	n, mg Acti	vity	Remaining area, pct	nickel	surface		
$\underline{ss-1}^1$ s	S-2 <sup>2</sup> Stand	lard SS-1	SS-2	<u>SS-1</u>	<u>SS-2</u>			
7.3	14.9 5.0	0.68	0.33	85	49			
(b) Sample weight for Remaining nickel surface 80% CO conversion, mg Activity area, pct								
<u>SS-1</u> S	SS-2 Stan	lard <u>SS-1</u>	<u>SS-2</u>	<u>SS-1</u>	<u>55-2</u>			
12.5	25.4 8	.5 0.71	0.33	85	49			

<sup>1</sup>SS-1 represents sulfided sample with 15 percent surface coverage. <sup>2</sup>SS-2 represents sulfided sample with 51 percent surface coverage.

### ESCA Measurements

A comparison between the ESCA spectra of Raney nickel before and after deactivation was made. Of particular interest was to identify surface carbide and deposited sulfur on the deactivated samples.

Survey scans of Raney nickel alloy and the reduced nonpyrophoric sample illustrate the usefulness of ESCA to detect elemental surface composition. Results from these scans are given in Table 5. Results of 20 eV scans over samples of Raney nickel alloy, a leached nonactivated reduced (LNDR) sample, the carbided and sulfided samples are given in Table 4-A in the Appendix.

In the Raney nickel\_alloy, the ratio of Ni<sup>+2</sup>/Ni<sup>o</sup> = 2.0, while in the LNDR sample the Ni<sup>+2</sup>/Ni<sup>o</sup> = 0.8. In the LNDR sample aluminum was observed which represents the nondissolvable Al, possibly from NiAl, and the absence of sodium indicates the completeness of the washing process. Very low concentrations of sulfur and nitrogen were observed in the two samples and are believed to represent surface S<sup>-2</sup>, SO<sub>4</sub><sup>-2</sup>, N<sub>2</sub> and NO<sub>2</sub><sup>-1</sup> species. A large carbon peak in the alloy at 284.5 eV could represent either graphitic carbon ( $E_{\rm B}$  = 284.3) or a paraffinic carbon ( $E_{\rm B}$ =285.0) (2). In the LNDR sample possibly a CO species resulted in a peak at 289.0 eV as well as a large peak at 284.5 eV. Reduced iron was seen in both samples.

On the sample that was deactivated by carbon laydown, binding energy peaks at 283.2 and 282.4 eV were observed and are believed to represent surface carbides. Since a carbidic carbon will be expected to have a partially negative charge, it will appear at a lower  $E_B$  than would be observed for  $C_{15}$  (285.0 eV).

### Table 5. - <u>Survey scans of Raney nickel alloy and a</u> reduced nonpyrophoric sample

### A. Raney nickel alloy

Elemental line	$\underline{\mathbf{E}}_{\mathbf{B}}, \mathbf{eV}$	Counts, K
Ni 3p	68	3.5
Ál 2p	74	11.0
Ni 3s	112	1.0
A1 2s	119	12.5
S 2p	1.69	1.0
C1 2p	199	0.5
C 1s	284	Very large peak
Ni 2p	858	19.0

### B. Reduced nonpyrophoric sample

Elemental line	E <sub>B</sub> , eV	Counts, K	
Fe 3p	55	0.5	
Ni 3p	67	7.0	
Al 2p	73	6.0	
Si 2p	100	0.5	
Ni 3s	112	2.5	
Al 2s	118	6.5	
' N ls	398	0.8	
C ls	284	8.5	
F ls	688	1.0	
Ni 2p	857	43.0	

Samples sulfided with  $H_2S$  were examined for carbon, nickel and sulfur. About the same level of carbon was observed as was detected on the alloy and the LNDR samples. The ratio of Ni<sup>-2</sup>/Ni<sup>O</sup> increased with extent of sulfiding. For the 15 percent sulfided catalyst Ni<sup>-2</sup>/Ni<sup>O</sup> = 1, while for the 51 percent sulfided sample the ratio equaled 2. On the 15 percent sulfided sample only one sulfur peak at 162.4 eV was observed, while on the higher sulfided sample, a second peak at 170 eV appeared. The 162.4 eV peak is believed to represent a surface sulfide, while the 170 eV peak is an adsorbed SO species. One would expect the E<sub>B</sub> for the sulfur S2p electron in NiS to be lower than 162 eV. Gaseous H<sub>2</sub><sup>B</sup>S has a S2p E<sub>B</sub> of 170 eV and the E<sub>B</sub> for an adsorbed sulfate, Fe<sub>2</sub>(SO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>3</sub>, is 169.3 eV (2). The observed 170 eV peak is not gaseous H<sub>2</sub>S. It is possible that a surface NiS existed and was oxidized to a sulfate while being transferred to the spectrometer or while being stored in the glass vial.

Samples that were deactivated by heat treatment were not examined by ESCA.

### Conclusions

The methanation activity of Raney nickel has been shown to be very sensitive to moderate deactivation conditions. A one hour exposure of the catalyst to a temperature of 600° C in an atmosphere of hydrogenhelium reduced nickel surface area by 60 percent and activity by 40 percent. Carbiding Raney nickel catalyst caused deactivation approximately in proportion to the amount of nickel which reacted with CO to form nickel carbide which is believed to be a fortuitous result. Possibly what occurred when synthesis gas was passed over the carbided sample was the reaction of H<sub>2</sub> with Ni<sub>3</sub>C to produce  $CH_4$  and the decomposition of CO to generate product  $CO_2$ . Raney nickel was extremely affected by H<sub>2</sub>S which caused a greater reduction in methanation activity than in the corresponding decrease in nickel surface area. Calculated nickel surface areas, assuming a Ni<sub>3</sub>S adsorbed species, correlated very well with the nickel surface area determined by H, chemisorption. The greater reduction in methanation activity than in nickel surface area suggests that nickel sites of different strengths existed and that H<sub>2</sub>S selectively poisoned the more active sites.

ESCA survey scans on Raney nickel alloy and a leached reduced sample of the catalyst resulted in detection of surface Fe, S, C, N, A1 and Ni. A small amount of surface carbide was observed on the sample that was deactivated by contacting with CO. A sulfur species was observed on the sample sulfided to 51 percent coverage and was identified as a sulfate. It is believed that a NiS species existed on the surface of the catalyst but was oxidized to the sulfate during sample storage or when transferred to the spectrometer.

### References

1. Bahr, H. A. and T. Bahr, Decomposition of Carbon Monoxide on Nickel. Berichte der Deutschen Chem. Gesellschaft, 61B, 1928, pp. 2177-2183.

2. Carlson, T. A., "Photoelectron and Auger Spectroscopy." Plenum Press, New York, 1975.

3. Demeter, J. J., A. J. Youngblood, J. H. Field and D. Bienstock. Synthesis of High-Btu Gas in Raney Nickel Coated Tube-Wall Reactor. BuMines RI-7033, 1967, 17 pp.

4. Field, J. H. and A. J. Forney. High-Btu Gas Via Fluid-Bed Gasification of Caking Coal and Catalytic Methanation. Proceedings of Synthetic Pipeline Gas Symposium, American Gas Association, Pittsburgh, PA, 1966, pp. 83-94.

5. Forney, A. J., R. J. Penski, D. Bienstock, and J. H. Field. Recent Catalyst Developments in the Hot-Gas-Recycle Process. BuMines RI 6609, 1965, 32 pp.

6. Forney, A. J. and W. P. Haynes. The SYNTHANE Coal-to-Gas-Process: A Progress Report. Preprints, Div. Fuel Chem., ACS, V. 15, No. 3, September 1971, pp. 32-39.

7. Haynes, W. P., J. J. Elliott, A. J. Youngblood, and A. J. Forney. Operation of a Sprayed Raney Nickel Tube Wall Reactor for Production of High-BTU Gas. Preprints, Div. Petrol Chem., ACS, V. 15, No. 4, September 1970, pp. A121-A130.

8. Haynes, W. P., A. J. Forney, J. J. Elliott and H. Pennline. Synthesis of Methane in Hot-Gas-Recycle Reactors, Pilot Plant Tests. Preprints Div. Fuel Chem., ACS, V. 19, No. 3, September 1974, pp. 10-42.

9. Haynes, W. P., R. R. Schehl, J. K. Weber, and A. J. Forney. Pilot Plant Study of an Adiabatic Parallel Plate Methanation Reactor. Presented at 68th Annual Meeting, American Institute of Chemical Engineers, Los Angeles, November 1975.

10. Mills, G. A. and F. W. Steffgen. Catalytic Methanation. Catalysis Reviews, V. 8, No. 2, 1973, pp. 159-210.

11. Richardson, J. T. SNG Catalyst Technology. Hydrocarbon Processing, V. 52, No. 12, December 1973, pp. 91-95.

12. Riesz, C. H., H. A. Dirksen and W. J. Kirkpatrick. Sulfur poisoning of Nickel Catalysts. Institute of Gas Technology, Research Bulletin No. 10, Chicago, September 1951.

13. Schehl, R. R. and W. P. Haynes. Deactivation of Raney Nickel Catalysts in Pilot Plant Methanators. Presented at 15th Annual Spring Symposium, Pittsburgh Catalysis Society, Pittsburgh, PA, April 1976. 14. Schehl, R. R., H. W. Pennline, J. P. Strakey and W. P. Haynes. Pilot Plant Operation of a Nonadiabatic Methanation Reactor. Preprints, Div. Fuel Chem., ACS, San Francisco, V. 21, No. 4, September 1976, pp. 2-21.

15. Wagner, D. C. Table of Positions of Photoelectrons and Auger Lines on the Binding Energy Scale. Shell Development Company, July 1974.

16. Wentreek, P. R., J. G. McCarty, B. J. Wood and H. Wise. Formation of Surface Carbon and Methanation Catalysis on Alumina Supported Nickel. Preprints, Div. Fuel Chem., ACS, San Francisco, V. 21, No. 4, September 1976, pp. 52-62.

### Appendix

Sample No.	Pulse No.	Catalyst wt, mg	Flgw Rate, cm /min	CO Conversion percent	Select <sup>CH</sup> 4	co <sub>2</sub>	percent <sup>C</sup> 2 <sup>H</sup> 6
B-73	1	3.7	30	86	85.6	14.2	0.1
		(	(overnight at	25°C)			
	2	3.7	30	83	90.3	9.5	0.2
	5	3.7	60	56	93.7	5.9	0.4
	6	3.7	60	54	94.2	5.2	0.6
	$2_{7-12}$	3.7	60				
	13	3.7	60	48	95.0	4.3	0.7
			(overnight at	: 320°C)			
D_7%	15	3.7	60	47	95.4	4.0	0.5
D-14	1	10.4	60	90	92.4	7.5	0.1
	2	10.4	60	87	91.2	8.9	0.1
	3-7	10.4	60				
	8	10.4	60	85	90.9	9.0	0.1
	9	10.4	60	85	90.1	9.9	0
в-75	- 1	٢.	60	73	86 5	13 /	0.1
	Ť C	6.5	60	75	88.3	11 2	0.5
	20	0.3	60	70	00.0		
	3-9	6.5	60	60	03 /	6 5	0.7
	13	6.5	60 60	65	89.5	10.3	0.2
	13	0.5	00			10.0	
B-120	1	11.2	60	95	83.3	14.4	2.3
	2	11.2	60	95	79.4	17,4	2.9
	4-10	11.2	60				
	11	11.2	60	97	85.1	13.9	1.0
	13	11.2	60	96	87.5	11.7	0.8
	14	11.2	60	96	90.0	9.3	0.8

# Table A-1. - CO Conversion and Selectivity of Nondeactivated Raney Nickel at 320°'C

<sup>1</sup>Corrected for weight loss during  $H_2$  reduction. <sup>2</sup>Successive pulse over catalyst, product gases were not analyzed by GC. <sup>3</sup>In 8 percent  $H_2$  + He at very low flow rate.

Lau		00 001110203				in the second second	
				CO			
Sample	Pulse	Sample	Reaction	Conversion,	Selec	tivity	, percent,
No.	No.	wt, mg	temp, °C	percent	CH	CO,	C <sub>2</sub> H <sub>6</sub>
		<u> </u>	200	10	45 E	5% O	05
B-92	3	0.9	300	10	40.5	24.0	1 5
	4	6.9	300		00.5	30.0	1.5
	5	6.9	300	18	64.1	34./	1.2
	6	6.9	300	16	6T.0	38.5	1.5
	7	6.9	300	17	64.0	35.0	1.5
	8	<b>6.9</b>	300	19	68.5	30.2	1.3
		•	(overnight in	He at 25°C)			
	9	6.9	300	17	32.7	66.2	1.0
	10	6.9	300	17	57.8	40.7	1.4
	11	6.9	350	60	48.0	52.0	0
	<b>بلانک</b>	. 0. 5	250				-
B-96.	1	14.5	300	22	50.5	49.0	0.5
5 50	2	14.5	300	28	64.2	35.3	0.5
		14.5	300	23	48.7	50.7	0.6
	4	14.5	300	26	50.8	48.6	0.6
	•		overnight in H	e at 25° C)		· · · · · ·	
	-	7 / F	200	20	26 7	62 1	0.2
	5	14.5	300	02	30.7	02.1	0.2
	6	14.5	200	±		~ ~	~
	7	• 14.5	320	3	8.2	91.8	0
	8	14.5	240	4	8.8	91.2	0
	10	14.5	260	12	23.0	76.3	0.7
		(	overnight in H	le at 25°C)			
	11	14.5	280	24	14.0	85.6	0.4
	12	14.5	300	40	65.0	34.6	0.4
	13	14.5	320	57	62.4	37.5	0.1
	14	14.5	340	67	71.9	28.0	0
	15	14.5	360	72	70.9	29.1	ა
	16	14.5	400	80	72.9	27.1	ō ·
	TO	, 14•J	overnicht in 1	Te at 310° C)			-
			CASTIFERE TH		<i>(</i> 0, 0)	01 0	• •
	17	14.5	320	53	68.0	31.9	0.2
	. 18	14.5	200	1			
				· •			

Table A-2 - CO Conversion and Selectivity Data of Carbided Raney Nickel

22.

Ľ

Table A-3. - CO Conversion and Selectivity of Sulfided Raney Nickel

,

A. 15 percent sulfided

				CO			
Semple	Pulse	Sample	Reaction	Conversion,	Selec	tivity, p	percent
No.	No.	wt, mg	temp., °C	percent	CH,	CO,	C2H6
B120	٦	8.0	320	61	87.0	11.5	1.5
D-172	л Т	8 0	320	58	85.0	12.8	2.3
	2	0.0	320	61	87.0	11.5	1.5
		0.0	220				
	4-9	0.0	220	£9			
	10	8.0	320	02	01.0	12 7	20
	11	8.0	320	62	04.0	13.2	2.00
		(	(overnight at	: 320°C)			_
	12	8.0	320	59	86.0	12.5	1.5
	13	8.0	320	59	87.0	11.6	1.3
	14	8-0	320	59	86.0	12.4	1.7
	15	8 0	330	66	81.4	17.4	1.1
	10	8 0	340	71	82.8	16.8	0.4
	17	0.0	250	77	82 3	17.4	0.3
	1/	0.0	350	01	04.1	15 8	0.2
	18	8.0	360	81	04.1	15.0	0.2
	19	8.0	370	84	82.8	10.9	0.2
	20	8.0	380	87	83.6	16.3	0.1
	21	8.0	390	90	85.2	14.7	0
	22	8.0	320	59	92.8	6.3	0.9
B-130	1	2.4	320	15	83.8	10.8	5.4
5 -50	2	2.4	320	25	81.9	12.6	5.5
	2	24	320	25	80.8	13.5	5.7
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	2.4	320				
	4-9	2.4	320	28	80 0	7.1	2.9
	10	2.4	220	20	82 6	12 0	5 6
	12	2.4	320	20	02.0	12.0	5.4
	13	2.4	320	27	91.0	13.3	د.د
B-126	1	14.3	320				
	2	14.3	320	84	77.4	20.9	1.7
	3	14.3	320	83	83.9	14.8	1.3
	4	14.3	320	84	86.1	12.9	1.0
	50	16 3	320				
	J-9	14.J	220	83	85.4	13.6	0.9
	10	14.5	320	20	0.7.4	15 0	1 3
	ΤT	14 <b>.</b> 3	320	04	02.0	<i>ر</i> • <i>د</i>	1.5
B-197	1	79 /	320	87	86.4	13.0	0.6
D-771	 -	10 Å	320	86	86.5	12.6	0.9
	2	1.2.4	320	60 0E	07.0	11 /	0 7
	3	.12.4	320	62	01.9	LL • 4	0.7
	4-9	12.4	320		/	10 7	
	10	12.4	320	86	85.4	7.دي	0.9
	11	12.4	320	85	85.8	13.5	0.8
			•				

(continued)

### Table A-3. - CO Conversion and Selectivity of Sulfided Raney Nickel (continued)

CO Selectivity, percent Conversion, Reaction Sample **Pulse** Sample CO2 <sup>С</sup>2<sup>Н</sup>6 wt, mg temp, °C percent CH4 No. No. 74 87.9 11.0 1.1 320 22.2 B-131 1 2 320 75 84.8 13.9 1.3 22.2 (overnight at 25°C) 0.8 86.3 12.9 320 73 3 22.2 4-9 22.2 320 ~~ ---------75 82.3 16.6 1.1 320 10 22.2 74 84.9 13.8 1.3 320 22.2 11 320 73. 80.3 18.2 1.5 22.2 12 320 72 84.2 14.7 1.1 22.2 13 78.5 19.8 1.7 14 22.2 320 73 11.6 86.9 1.5 320 58 B-133 1 13.3 88.8 9.8 1.4 320 57 2 13.8 88.3-.10.3 1.4 3 320 56 13.8 320 \_\_\_ \_\_ 4-9 13.8 -86.9 11.4 1.7 320 57 10 13.8 4.2 0.8 320 -55 95.1 11 13.8 (overnight at 25°C) 89.7 8.9 1.3 55 320 12 13.8 1.2 57 88.7 10.1 320 13 13.8 84.0 14.4 1.5 62 13.8 330 14 69 81.1 18.3 0.6 340 15 13.8 0.2 86.0 13.8 13.8 350 72 B-133 16 0.2 76 85.8 14.1 17 13.8 360 0:2 83.9 15.9 13.8 370 80 18 83.7 16.2 0.1 380 82 1.9 13.8 85.1 14.9 0 390 84 20 13.8 55 89.1 9.5 1.4 320 21 13.8 11.2 86.5 2.3 22 13.8 320 54 85.4 10.7 3.9 B-134 1 7.7 320 35 85.4 3.8 37 10.8 2 7.7 320 3 320 38 87.7 8.9 3.5 7.7 4-9 320 7.7 39 87.3 9.2 3.5 10 320 7.7 39 86.6 9.5 3.9 7.7 320 11 (over weekend at 250°C)

B. 51 percent sulfided

(continued)

# Table A-3. - CO Conversion and Selectivity of Sulfided Raney Nickel (continued)

### B. 51 percent sulfided

.

Sample	Pulse	Sample	Reaction	CO conversion,	Selec	tivity, I	ercent
No.	Nc.	wt, mg	temp., °C	percent	CH <sub>4</sub>	<u> </u>	<sup>C</sup> 2 <sup>H</sup> 6
B-134	12	7.7	330	40	87.3	10.4	2.0
	13	7.7	340	47	87.1	11.2	1.7
	14	7.7	350	49	85.3	13.6	1.0
	15	7.7	360	60	86.8	12.5	0.7
	16	7.7	370	66	84.3	15.4	0.3
	1.7	7.7	380	68	83.0	16.7	0.3
	18	7.7	390	74	78.3	21.4	0.3
	19	7.7	320	37	87.1	9.7	3.2
B-136	1	4.6	320	25	88.4	8.2	3.4
	2	4.6	320	24	92.3	4,9	2.8
	3-9	4.6	320				
	10	4.6	320	23	87.0	8.6	4.4
	11	4.6	320	24	88.9	6.9	4.3

.

### Table A-4. - ESCA Measurements (20 eV scans) Over Raney Nickel Alloy, Leached, Nondeactivated, Reduced Raney Nickel, and Carbided and Sulfided Raney Nickel

Elemental state	Tabulated E <sub>B</sub> , eV ( <u>15</u> ) <sup>1</sup>	Reference compound ( <u>15</u> ) <sup>1</sup>	Observed E <sub>B</sub> , eV	Counting time, counts/min	Proposed species
Ni 2p	855	K2Ni(GN)4	853.2 856.2	81 163	Ni Ni+2
Al 2s	120	Al <sub>2</sub> 03	118.6	126	
C ls	285	(CH <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>n</sub>	A large ( change in off the e	C ls peak was obso n peak position up electron flood gu	erved; no pon turning n.
Fe 2p	710	K <sub>3</sub> Fe(CN) <sub>6</sub>	711.5	15	Fe <sup>+2</sup> , Fe <sup>+3</sup>
Na 1s	1071	Na <sub>2</sub> SO <sub>2</sub>	1071.0	20	Nat
S 2p	163	WS <sub>2</sub>	163.0	4	s <sup>-2</sup>
•	164.3( <u>2</u> )	$Fe_2(SO_4)_3$	168.2	8	$so_4^{-2}$
N 1.5	399	(NH <sub>4</sub> ) 3 <sup>AlF</sup> 6	399.2	8	N <sub>2</sub>
II. Leache	d, nondeactivate	d, reduced sample	25		
Ni 2p	855	K <sub>2</sub> Ni(CN) <sub>4</sub>	852.3 3 <sup>855.5</sup> 3861.5	1412 1088 353	Ni <sup>0</sup> Ni <sup>+2</sup>
Al 2s	120	A1,0,	118.6	173	Alo
C 1s	285 289 (2)	(CH <sub>2</sub> ) CH <sub>2</sub> COUN <sup>II</sup> (2)	284.5 289.0	162 44	C° CO
Fe 2p	710	K3Fe(CN)6	4711.2 5712.8	147 47	Fe <sup>+2</sup> ,Fe <sup>+3</sup> Fe <sup>+2</sup> ,Fe <sup>+3</sup>
Na 1s	1071	Na <sub>2</sub> SO3	No signa	l in 34 minutes	<b>o</b>
S 2.p	163	ws <sub>2</sub>	163.0	4	s_2
	169.3(2)	Fe2(S04)3	168.2	7 .	so <sub>4</sub>
N 1s	399	(NH <sub>4</sub> ) AlF <sub>6</sub>	399.0	21	<sup>N</sup> 2
	402.2( <u>2</u> )	$(CH_3)_3NO(\underline{2})$	403.5	6	NO2

<sup>1</sup>E<sub>B</sub> values and reference compounds taken from references (<u>15</u>) and (<u>2</u>). <sup>2</sup>Since Ni and Fe were oxidized, would expect most of A1 to be A1<sup>+3</sup>

- <sup>3</sup>Inelastically scattered electrons from Ni<sup>+2</sup>
- <sup>4</sup>Reduced sample.

<sup>5</sup>Nonpyrophoric sample that was not reduced.

26.

I. Raney nickel alloy

Table A-4.	- ESCA Measurements (20 eV scans) Over Raney Nickel Alloy,
	Leached, Nondeactivated, Reduced Raney Nickel, and
	Carbided and Sulfided Raney Nickel (continued)

Elementa state	l Ta E <sub>B</sub>	bulated , eV( <u>15</u> )	Reference Compound ( <u>15</u> )	Observed E <sub>B</sub> , eV	Counting time, counts/min	Proposed species
C 1s		285	(CH <sub>2</sub> )	282.4	5	c
(Flood g	un on)	284.3(2)	graphite ( <u>2</u> )	283.2	50	ເີ
				284.6	132	C°
		289( <u>2</u> )	CH <sub>3</sub> <u>C</u> OONa( <u>2</u> )	289.0	38	<sup>C0</sup> x
C ls		285	(CH <sub>2</sub> )	285.0	91.	C°
(Flood g	un off)	289( <u>2</u> )	CH3COONa(2)	288.0	38	cox
JV. <u>Sul</u>	fided sam	ple of reduc	ed Raney nickel	<u>.</u>		
A. Sulf	ided to 1	5 percent co	overage			
S 2p		163	WS2	162.4	7	s <sup>-2</sup>
Ni 2p		855	k <sub>2</sub> Ni(CN) <sub>4</sub>	852.6 856.2	286 314	Ni Ni Ni
B. Suli	ided to i	51 percent co	overage			
S 2p		163 169.3( <u>2</u> )	<sup>WS</sup> 2 Fe2(SO <sub>1</sub> )3( <u>2</u> )	153.0 170.0	7 10	s <sup>-2</sup> so <sub>4</sub> <sup>-2</sup>
Ni 2p		855	$K_2^{Ni}(CN)_4$	853.0 856.5	410 787	Ni Ni Ni
C ls		285	(CH <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>n</sub>	285.8	97	C°

III. Carbided sample of reduced Raney nickel

•

. . • • . • • • • • . 

# SATISFACTION GUARANTEED

NTIS strives to provide quality products, reliable service, and fast delivery Please contact us for a replacement within 30 days if the item you receive your order. ling if we have made an error in s defective or

# E-mail: info@ntis.gov Phone: 1-888-584-8332 or (703)605-6050

# Reproduced by NTIS

National Technical Information Service Springfield, VA 22161

# This report was printed specifically for your order from nearly 3 million titles available in our collection.

For economy and efficiency, NTIS does not maintain stock of its vast collection of technical reports. Rather, most documents are custom reproduced for each order. Documents that are not in electronic format are reproduced from master archival copies and are the best possible reproductions available.

Occasionally, older master materials may reproduce portions of documents that are not fully legible. If you have questions concerning this document or any order you have placed with NTIS, please call our Customer Service Department at (703) 605-6050.

# About NTIS

NTIS collects scientific, technical, engineering, and related business information – then organizes, maintains, and disseminates that information in a variety of formats – including electronic download, online access, CD-ROM, magnetic tape, diskette, multimedia, microfiche and paper.

The NTIS collection of nearly 3 million titles includes reports describing research conducted or sponsored by federal agencies and their contractors; statistical and business information; U.S. military publications; multimedia training products; computer software and electronic databases developed by federal agencies; and technical reports prepared by research organizations worldwide.

For more information about NTIS, visit our Web site at <u>http://www.ntis.gov</u>.



**Ensuring Permanent, Easy Access to U.S. Government Information Assets** 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE Technology Administration National Technical Information Service Springfield, VA 22161 (703) 605-6000

×